
SUBJECT

Public Comment Period:

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

P.M. NAME

REGULAR SESSION OF THE PAMLICO COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2026

7:00 Chairman Heath Call Meeting to Order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Approve Proposed Commissioner's Meeting Agenda for 
February 16, 2026 (Additions and/or deletions to the Agenda)

Approval of the minutes for:
January 20, 2026 Regular and Closed Session Minutes and 
February 9, 2026 Special Called Meeting and Closed Session 
Minutes   

7:05 Retirement  Recognition Proclamation for Lisa Bennett  [1. 25-26-149]

7:10 Dr. Jeremy Johnson Pamlico County Schools Quarterly Update [2. 25-26-150]

7:15 Melanie Dixon Healthy NC 2030 Scorecard & SOTCH Presentation [3. 25-26-151]

7:20 Carr, Riggs & Ingram Annual Audit Presentation [4. 25-26-152]

Each speaker is asked to limit comments to three (3) minutes. Direct your comments to the full board, not to an
individual Board member or staff member. Although the Board is interested in hearing your concerns, speakers should
not expect Board action or deliberation on subject matter brought up during the Public Comment segment. The Public
Comment period shall not exceed a total of fifteen minutes, unless the Board entertains a successful majority vote to
extend this period.

CONSENT AGENDA
25-26-153 Request for approval of Budget Amendments

25-26-154 Request for approval of Board Releases

25-26-155 Request for approval of Board of Equalization Member Reappointment

25-26-156 Request for approval of the Fire Department Local Relief Fund Board Appointments

25-26-157 Request for approval to Accept Opioid Legislative Appropriations 

25-26-158 Request for approval of the Library Board Appointment 

25-26-159 Request for approval of Agricultural Advisory Board Appointment 

25-26-160 Request for approval of Environmental Health Additional Fees 



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

25-26-166 Discussion Request: Appeal of Situs of a 2014 Lagoon 40ft

25-26-161 Request for approval of Environmental Health Power Outage of Regulated Establishments 
Guidance Document

25-26-162 Request for approval of USDA Lease Agreement 

25-26-163 Request for approval of China Grove Subdivision, China Grove Road Plat 

25-26-164 Request for approval/acceptance of the 2025 County Commissioners Annual Settlement 
Report

CORRESPONDENCE AGENDA
25-26-165 Discussion Request: Approval of Updated Swimming Pool Policy 

25-26-167 Discussion Request: Pamlico County Animal Services Ordinance

25-26-168 Request for Closed Session regarding Personnel [N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6)]

County Commissioner, County Attorney, County Manager and Finance Officer time and closed session if applicable.



REGULAR SESSION MINUTES OF THE 
PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2026 

The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, January 20, 2026, at 
7:00pm in the Patsy H. Sadler room of the Pamlico County Courthouse.  Commissioners Candy 
Bohmert, Doug Brinson, Kari Forrest, Ken Heath, Thomas Mills, and Ed Riggs were present. Also 
present were County Attorney Dave Baxter, County Manager Mark Brewington, Finance Officer Alex 
Showalter, and Clerk to the Board Tracy Boyd. Commissioner Carl Ollison was not present.  

Chairman Heath called the meeting and led the assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Chairman Heath asked if there were any additions and/or deletions to the agenda; Commissioner Riggs 
made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Brinson, and unanimously approved to add Item 7a: Appeal 
of Valuation of a 1998 Grady White 23ft Twin Yamaha 150hp and Remove Item 1: Proclamation for 
Lisa Bennett.   

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by Commissioner Brinson, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.   

BE IT RESOLVED, the Proposed Commissioner’s Meeting Agenda  for January 20, 2026, 
is hereby approved as amended. 

Chairman Heath asked if there were any corrections, additions, and/or deletions to the January 5, 2026, 
Regular and Closed Session Minutes. There were no changes, then on a motion made by Commissioner 
Bohmert and seconded by Commissioner Heath, the following resolution was unanimously approved. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the January 5, 2026 Regular and Closed Session Minutes are hereby 
approved, and the Chairman’s signature is authorized thereon.  

The Board then turned their attention to the Consent Agenda. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by Commissioner Bohmert, the following 
resolutions were unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of the Tax Office Board Releases is hereby 
approved, and the Chairman’s signature is authorized thereon. [25-26-141]

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to approve Pamlico County Government Password Policy 
and Pamlico County Government Acceptable Use Policy, are hereby approved. [25-26-142] 

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval from the Water Department for Remodeling 
of Bathroom quote in the amount of $14,900.00, is hereby approved. [25-26-143] 

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval from the Sheriff’s Office to Purchase 1 
Replacement Vehicle with an estimate cost of $55,500.00, is hereby approved. [25-26-144] 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

Commissioner Forrest arrived at 7:04pm.  

The Board then turned their attention to the Correspondence Agenda. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Bohmert and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the following FY25-26 Budget Amendment(s) are hereby approved. 
[25-26-145] 

 

  

 

  

Department: Rescue Squad  #26-069  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
100600-400000   Miscellaneous Revenue  $  500.00      
104370-519900 RACE  Contracted Services   $      500.00 
 
 

Reason for Budget revision: To recognize Misc. Revenue from Duke Institute for clinical studies and increase Rescue Squad 
contracted services line. 
 

Department: Finance  #26-070  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
100000-439900  Fund Balance Approp  $  115,000.00      
109910-599041  Transfer to Reappraisal Fund   $      115,000.00 
410226-430010  Transfer from General Fund  $ 115,000.00 
414142-519200  Professional Services  $ 115,000.00 
 

Reason for Budget revision: To move money to cover shortfall in Reappraisal due to change from 8 year cycle to 6 year 
cycle. 
 

Department: NCDIT Broadband Grant #26-071  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
100000-439900  Fund Balance Approp  $  295,000.00      
104110-555008  NCDIT Broadband Grant  $      295,000.00 
 

Reason for Budget revision: To reallocate funds needed for NCDIT Grant not rolled forward. 
 DRAFT M

IN
UTES



 
 

  

  

  

The Board and County Manager Mark Brewington discussed the requirements, restrictions and financial 
obligations of the County. County Manager Mark Brewington also mentioned the County responsibility 
would be approximately $24,349.00 for year one. Sheriff Chris Davis was in attendance for any 
questions. Sheriff Chris Davis mentioned this grant requires a tiered match over three years and grant 
would fund one Traffic Safety Deputy to include salary, equipment, and vehicle for one year. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Bohmert, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.   

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request from Sheriff’s Office to apply for the 2026 Governor’s 
Highway Safety Traffic Safety Grant, is hereby approved. [25-26-146] 

On a motion made by Commissioner Bohmert and seconded by Commissioner Forrest, the following 
resolutions were unanimously approved.  

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request from Tax Administrator to uphold the value of $16,840.00 
of an Appeal of Valuation of a 1998 Grady White 23ft Twin Yamaha 150hp Boat, is hereby 
approved.[7a.] 

Department: Emergency Management #26-072  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
100213-434362  EMS/EMW-2020-SS-00023  $  14,032.85      
104330-541083  Equipment – EMS Boat Trailer  $      14,032.85 
 

Reason for Budget revision: To increase HSGP funding for Personal Protective Equipment. Funds were reallocated to 
Pamlico as another jurisdiction returned unspent funds. 
 

Department: Sheriff  #26-073  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
100600-434262  Insurance Claims Loss-Sheriff  $  27,000.00      
104620-555000  Capital Outlays  $      27,000.00 
 

Reason for Budget revision: An adjustment to the Enterprise Plan for Fiscal Year 2026 to facilitate the purchase of an 
additional vehicle for the Sheriff’s fleet to replace a totaled vehicle in December. 
 

Department: Jail  #26-074  
 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT (+) AMOUNT (-) 
NUMBER  INCREASED DECREASED 
  
104320-519900  Contracted Services  $  53,100.00      
100000-439900  Fund Balance App  $      53,100.00 
 

Reason for Budget revision: To accommodate payment in relation to a settlement agreement. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

The Board discussed options for a Budget Meeting. The Board confirmed a Budget Meeting would be 
scheduled for Monday, February 2, 2026 at 5:00pm in the Commissioners’ Board Room, located on the 
second floor of the Pamlico County Courthouse Annex, 202 Main Street, Bayboro, NC 28515. This 
meeting is open to the public. [25-26-147] 

Chairman Heath then invited Health Director Melanie Dixon to present the Board of Health following 
agenda items: 

1. Introduction 
2. Monies Received for Services  
3. EH Updates: 

a. Food and Lodging Quarterly Numbers (Oct-Dec 2025) 
b. EH Application/Permit Numbers  
c. Three-month comparison of On-Site Numbers 

4. Clinic Updates: 
a. Patient Appointments for the 2nd Quarter (Oct-Dec 2025) 
b. Patients Seen for the 2nd Quarter 
c. Hard Numbers from the Electronic Health Record 

5. Animal Services Updates: 
a. 2nd Quarter Numbers  
b. Concerns  

6. Brief Update on Accreditation Cycle 2022-2026 
7. Questions? 

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Forrest, and unanimously 
approved, the Board went into Closed Session for discussion regarding Personnel and Attorney/Client 
Privilege [N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6)(3)].  Time Recorded: 7:41pm  [25-26-148] 

No action was taken in Closed Session.  

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Bohmert, and unanimously 
approved, the Board went back into Open Session.  Time Recorded: 9:16pm 

The Board met in Closed Session to consult with the County Attorney in order to preserve attorney/client 
privilege.  

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by Commissioner Brinson, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of the Mutual Settlement Agreement and 
Release between Pamlico County and CarolinaEast Medical Center, is hereby approved.  

There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Heath and seconded by 
Commissioner Riggs, the Board adjourned until next regular meeting on Monday, February 2, 2026, at 
7:00pm. Time Recorded: 9:26pm. 

 

______________________________________ 
Chairman     

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

 
______________________________________ 
  Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES OF THE 
PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2026 

The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners met on Monday, February 9, 2026 at 6:00pm in the Patsy 
H. Sadler room of the Pamlico County Courthouse. Commissioners Doug Brinson, Kari Forrest, Ken
Heath, Thomas Mills, Carl Ollison, and Ed Riggs were present. Also present were County Manager
Mark Brewington, Finance Officer Alex Showalter and Clerk to the Board Tracy Boyd. Commissioner
Candy Bohmert was not present. This meeting was open to the public, and proper notice was given.

Chairman Heath called the meeting to order, and turned the meeting over to County Manager Mark 
Brewington and Finance Officer Alex Showalter.  

The Board then began the Budget Meeting. The purpose of this meeting was: 

1. Gather Board Input on Strategic Priorities
2. Explain the FY 2027 Budget Development Process

- Infrastructure Needs
- Capital Planning and Reserve Proposal

3. Review FY 2026 Financial Outlook
4. Approval of Loan Modification with Truist Bank In Relation to New School Construction and

Budget Amendment
5. Current Vacant Positions
6. General Discussion

Finance Officer Alex Showalter presented the following: 

• Changes in Budget Process for FY 2027:
- Key changes to the budget process include linking funding to results, adopting a multi-

year perspective for better visibility, making more transparent use of the fund balance,
and improving the budget book for readability and public transparency.

• Community Context and SWOT (Strengths, Weakness, Opportunities, Threats) Analysis
• Infrastructure and Development Discussion
• Vision and Mission Statement
• Strategic Plan Goals
• County Spending, Cost Analysis, and Revenue Allocation

- Total One Time Revenues: $816,893.32
• County Budget and Financial Challenges
• EOY Fund Balance Estimate

- Currently there are a lot of unknown variables for end of year, some health and social
services revenues may not be realized due to continued federal funding issues.

- Best Case = ~($300,000.00)
Medium Case = ~($461,000.00)
Worst Case = ~($756,000.00)

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



- Jail Revenue has recovered but, it is not currently generated an excess to makeup for
prior months.

The Board discussed the current open positions.  

Chairman thanked Finance Officer Alex Showalter, and the Board turned their attention to the Consent 
Agenda. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of Loan Modification with Truist Bank In 
Relation to New School Construction and supporting Budget Amendment, is hereby approved.   

The Board announced they would be holding a Budget Meeting on Friday, March 20, 2026. This meeting 
is open to the public.  

Chairman Heath asked to add Closed Session for Personnel on the agenda. On a motion made by 
Commissioner Forrest and seconded by Commissioner Brinson, the resolution was unanimously 
approved.  

On a motion made by Commissioner Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Heath, and unanimously 
approved, the Board went into Closed Session for Personnel items [N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6)].  Time 
Recorded: 8:00pm 

No action was taken during Closed Session, then on a motion made by Commissioner Forrest, seconded 
by Commissioner Riggs, and unanimously approved, the Board went back into Open Session.  Time 
Recorded: 8:03pm 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to contract Lisa Bennett to assist in the Board of Elections 
office for a maximum of 40 hours at $35.00 per hour beginning February 12, 2026, through March 
13, 2026, is hereby approved.  

There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by 
Commissioner Heath, the Board adjourned until the next regular meeting on Monday, February 16, 2026 
at 7:00pm. Time Recorded: 8:05pm. 

______________________________________ 
Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Proclamation Recognizing Pamlico County Board of Elections Director Lisa 
Bennett 

Pamlico County Board of Commissioners to present a Proclamation recognizing 
Pamlico County Board of Elections Director Lisa Bennett for her retirement of 
approximately 19 years of service. Director Bennett has served the residents of Pamlico 
County well. 

Please see a copy of the Proclamation attached for your review and consideration. 

1



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 
 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

 
 
 
 
 

 
COUNTY OF PAMLICO 

 

POST OFFICE BOX 776 
BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 

(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195 
FAX (252) 745-5514       

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

TRACY BOYD 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

 
 

 

Proclamation Recognizing Lisa Bennett 
Upon Retirement from Pamlico County Board of Elections 

For Exceptional Service 
 

WHEREAS, Director Bennett has dedicated approximately 19 years of exemplary service to the citizens of Pamlico 
County, most recently serving as the Director of Elections; and 

WHEREAS, throughout her tenure, Director Bennett has been a steadfast guardian of the democratic process, ensuring 
that every election was conducted with the highest levels of integrity, transparency, and accuracy; and 

WHEREAS, Director Bennett oversaw the administration of numerous municipal, county, state, and federal elections, 
navigating complex legislative changes and technological advancements to improve the voting experience 
for all residents; and 

WHEREAS, Director Bennett has earned the deep respect of colleagues, poll workers, and the community for her 
commitment to fair and accessible elections and her tireless efforts to educate and engage voters; and 

WHEREAS, Director Bennett retired from Pamlico County on January 2, 2026, leaving behind a legacy of professional 
excellence and a modernized election department; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners does hereby express its 
sincere and grateful appreciation to Director Bennett for her dedicated service to the residents of Pamlico County; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board extends its heartiest congratulations on a well-earned retirement and offers 
its best wishes for continued success, happiness, and good health in all future endeavors. 

Adopted this 16th day of February 2026 by the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners. 

 
        

______________________________________ 
       Ken Heath, Chairman 
       Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Tracy Boyd, Clerk to the Board 
 
[SEAL] 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Pamlico County Public Schools Update 

Pamlico County Schools Superintendent Dr. Jeremy Johnson has requested time with 
the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners to give an update on Pamlico County 
School. 

2



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Pamlico County Health Department Annual State Of The County Health Report 

Pamlico County Health Director will present to the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners the State of the County Health Report. This report will provide an 
overview of the current programs and services. 

Please see a copy of the Healthy NC 2030 Scorecard & State of the County Health 
presentation documents for your review. 

3



H
EA

LT
H

Y
 N

C
 2

03
0 

SC
O

R
EC

A
R

D
 &

 
SO

TC
H

PA
M

LI
C

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 | 
20

24
–2

02
7

M
EL

A
N

IE
 R

. D
IX

O
N

-H
EA

LT
H

 D
IR

EC
TO

R



W
H

AT
 IS

 T
H

E 
H

EA
LT

H
Y

 N
C

 
20

30
 

SC
O

R
EC

A
R

D
?

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 h
ea

lth
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y 
to

ol
 fo

r 
20

24
–2

02
7

• 
Ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 2

02
4 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
H

A
)

• 
Se

rv
es

 a
s 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

(C
H

IP
)

• 
R

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

N
C

 L
oc

al
 

H
ea

lth
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n



W
H

Y
 T

H
E 

BO
A

R
D

 O
F 

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ER
S 

SH
O

U
LD

 C
A

R
E

• 
D

at
a-

dr
iv

en
 r

oa
dm

ap
 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
he

al
th

 
ou

tc
om

es

• A
lig

ns
 c

ou
nt

y 
ef

fo
rt

s 
w

ith
 H

ea
lth

y 
N

C
 2

03
0 

go
al

s

• 
Su

pp
or

ts
 g

ra
nt

 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 s
ta

te
 

fu
nd

in
g

• 
En

su
re

s 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

ri
ng

• 
R

ef
le

ct
s 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s



H
O

W
 H

EA
LT

H
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S 

W
ER

E 
ID

EN
T

IF
IE

D
•

 C
om

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

 s
ur

ve
y 

(6
20

 r
es

po
ns

es
)

•
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f l
oc

al
 a

nd
 s

ta
te

 h
ea

lth
 d

at
a

•
 T

ar
ge

te
d 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 to
 u

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns

•
 In

pu
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

A
dv

is
or

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs



20
24

–2
02

7 
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 H

EA
LT

H
 

PR
IO

R
IT

IE
S

1.
 S

U
BS

TA
N

C
E 

U
SE

 D
IS

O
R

D
ER

2.
 M

EN
TA

L 
H

EA
LT

H
3.

 O
V

ER
W

EI
G

H
T

 
/ O

BE
SI

T
Y



W
H

AT
 T

H
E 

SC
O

R
EC

A
R

D
 M

EA
SU

R
ES

•
R

es
ul

t S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 –
de

si
re

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
on

di
tio

ns

•
H

ea
lth

y 
N

C
 2

03
0 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 –

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ea

su
re

s

•
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

&
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 –
lo

ca
l a

ct
io

ns

•
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

–
ef

fo
rt

, q
ua

lit
y, 

im
pa

ct

•
Tr

ac
ke

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 u

si
ng

 C
le

ar
 Im

pa
ct

 S
co

re
ca

rd



K
EY

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 H
EA

LT
H

 
C

H
A

LL
EN

G
ES

•
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

us
e 

an
d 

ov
er

do
se

 r
is

k

•
 L

im
ite

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s

•
C

hr
on

ic
 d

is
ea

se
 a

nd
 o

be
si

ty

•
C

os
t, 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 a

nd
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs

•
H

ea
lth

 d
is

pa
ri

tie
s 

am
on

g 
un

de
rs

er
ve

d 
po

pu
la

tio
ns



W
H

AT
 

H
A

PP
EN

S 
N

EX
T

• 
C

H
IP

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
20

27

• A
nn

ua
l S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 (
SO

T
C

H
) r

ep
or

tin
g

• 
C

on
tin

ue
d 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t



BO
T

TO
M

 L
IN

E

•
R

eq
ui

re
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
 d

oc
um

en
t

•
N

ot
 a

 n
ew

 m
an

da
te

•
St

re
ng

th
en

s 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es

•
Su

pp
or

ts
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 h
ea

lth
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
Pa

m
lic

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
re

si
de

nt
s



C
H

A
 →

 C
H

IP
 →

 S
O

T
C

H
 →

 
A

C
C

R
ED

IT
AT

IO
N

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
H

A
) 2

02
4

Pr
io

ri
ty

 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 &

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

lth
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 (C
H

IP
) 

20
24

-2
7

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
&

 M
on

ito
ri

ng
 

C
le

ar
 Im

pa
ct

 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d

 

St
at

e 
of

 t
he

 
C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 
(S

O
T

C
H

) 
A

nn
ua

l B
O

C
C

 
R

ep
or

tin
g

 

A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
&

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e



20
25

 S
O

T
C

H
 –

K
EY

 P
RO

G
R

ES
S

• 
Pr

im
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

an
d 

Te
le

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

la
un

ch
ed

• 
Fu

ll-
tim

e 
A

dv
an

ce
d 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

Pr
ov

id
er

 (
40

 h
rs

/w
ee

k)

• 
$2

50
,0

00
 N

C
 D

H
H

S 
Te

le
he

al
th

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

G
ra

nt

• W
or

kf
or

ce
 p

ip
el

in
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
ac

ad
em

ic
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps



LE
A

D
IN

G
 C

A
U

SE
S 

O
F 

D
EA

T
H

 –
PA

M
LI

C
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
ir

cu
la

to
ry

 S
ys

te
m

C
an

ce
r

Ex
te

rn
al

 C
au

se
s

Re
sp

ir
at

or
y

M
en

ta
l/N

eu
ro

En
do

cr
in

e/
M

et
ab

ol
ic

Pe
rc

en
t o

f D
ea

th
s

23
.2

20
.5

6.
5

5.
4

3.
2

2.
2

23
.2

20
.5

6.
5

5.
4

3.
2

2.
2

Pe
rc

en
t 

of
 D

ea
th

s



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 –

 
D

IS
C

O
N

T
IN

U
ED

 
IN

IT
IA

T
IV

ES

D
is

co
nt

in
ue

d:

• 
N

C
 S

yr
in

ge
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
 (

BO
H

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 d

en
ie

d)

• 
Ja

il 
H

ea
lth

• 
D

SS
 C

A
P/

D
is

ab
le

d 
A

du
lts

 N
ur

se
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

• 
C

D
C

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
 

Pr
og

ra
m

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 H
ea

lth
 A

id
e 

Pi
lo

t 
In

te
rn

sh
ip



BO
A

R
D

 A
C

C
EP

TA
N

C
E 

&
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

•
T

he
 P

am
lic

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

es
pe

ct
fu

lly
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

th
at

 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s:

•
A

cc
ep

t 
th

e 
20

25
 S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 (S
O

T
C

H
) R

ep
or

t

•
A

pp
ro

ve
 t

he
 2

02
4–

20
27

 C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 
(C

H
IP

)

•
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

th
e 

H
ea

lth
y 

N
C

 2
03

0 
Sc

or
ec

ar
d 

as
 P

am
lic

o 
C

ou
nt

y’s
 

of
fic

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y 
fr

am
ew

or
k

•
T

he
se

 a
ct

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, f

un
di

ng
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

, 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
ea

lth
 o

ut
co

m
es

.

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
A

ct
io

n:
 A

cc
ep

t 
&

 A
pp

ro
ve



T
H

A
N

K
 

YO
U

!

Pa
m

lic
o 

C
ou

nt
y 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s/
Bo

ar
d 

of
 H

ea
lth

Pa
m

lic
o 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

St
af

f

A
dv

is
or

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 H

ea
lth

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
s

Pa
m

lic
o 

C
ou

nt
y 

R
es

id
en

ts

M
el

an
ie

 R
. D

ix
on

H
ea

lth
 D

ire
ct

or
Pa

m
lic

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lth

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t



CHA, CHIP, and SOTCH Submissions 

All electronic documents and requests related to CHA, CHIP, and SOTCH submissions 
must be sent to the following email address: 
CHA.SOTCH@dhhs.nc.gov 

The North Carolina Local Health Department Accreditation Program and the NC 
Department of Health and Human Services (NC DHHS) Consolidated Agreement require 
local health departments to complete a Community Health Assessment (CHA) at least 
once every 48 months.  

The year of the CHA marks the start of the CHA-CHIP-SOTCH Cycle. 

 

Community Health Assessment (CHA) 

Due date: First Monday in March 

Submission Steps 

1. Create a new Scorecard Cycle in Clear Impact Scorecard. 

2. Upload a PDF version of the CHA to the Community Health Assessment section of 
the new Scorecard. 

3. Name the file using the following format: 
COUNTY_ {YEAR}_CHA.pdf (e.g., AVERY_ 2024_ CHA.pdf). 

4. Copy and paste the Executive Summary into the note fields in Scorecard. 

5. Email CHA.SOTCH@dhhs.nc.gov to notify staff that the CHA has been uploaded 
and is ready for review. 

Additional Requirements 

• If requesting an extension, submit the request in writing to 
CHA.SOTCH@dhhs.nc.gov before the due date. 

• Review the document for spelling and grammatical errors before uploading. 

• Receipt of documents will be acknowledged within two weeks. If you do not receive 
confirmation, contact the HNC 2030 Resource Center at HNC2030@dhhs.nc.gov. 

 

 



Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) 

Timing and Due Dates 

• The CHIP must be created in Clear Impact Scorecard within six months of the CHA. 

• If the CHA is submitted by the first Monday in March, the CHIP is due by the first 
Monday in September (Labor Day). 

Core Requirements 

• The CHIP must demonstrate key characteristics of Results-Based Accountability 
(RBA) including data and narrative that tell a concise story of how people are better 
off because of the improvement plan. 

• All baseline data (indicators and performance measures) should be updated at least 
annually (typically during SOTCH reporting). 

• All Programs must have one or more performance measures. 

• Performance measures are optional for non-Program objects (e.g., Policy, Strategy, 
Activity, Coalition Task Force). 

• All object types must include: 

o A clear description 

o Identification of partners 

o An annual progress note 

Submission Steps 

1. Review all note fields for spelling, grammar, and clarity. 

2. Download a fully expanded copy of the CHIP (including all notes). 

3. Name the file COUNTY_ {YEAR}_CHIP.pdf (e.g., AVERY_ 2025_ CHIP.pdf). 

4. Email the file to CHA.SOTCH@dhhs.nc.gov by the due date. 

Extensions 

• Extension requests must be submitted in writing before the due date. 

• An extension for the CHA does not automatically extend the CHIP. 

Confirmation 



• Receipt will be acknowledged within two weeks. If no confirmation is received, 
contact HNC2030@dhhs.nc.gov. 

 

State of the County Health Report (SOTCH) 

A SOTCH report is required in years when a CHA is not submitted. It documents annual 
progress on CHIP performance measures. 

Due Date 

• First Monday in March (in non-CHA years) 

Example Timeline 

• CHA submitted: A 2023 CHA was submitted March 2024 

• CHIP submitted: September 2024 

• First SOTCH (for 2024 data): March 2025 

• Second SOTCH (for 2025 data): March 2026 

Submission Steps 

1. Create the SOTCH in Clear Impact Scorecard. 

2. Download a fully expanded copy (including all notes). 

3. Name the file COUNTY_ {YEAR}_SOTCH.pdf (e.g., AVERY_ 2025_ SOTCH.pdf). 

4. Email the file to CHA.SOTCH@dhhs.nc.gov by the due date. 

Additional Requirements 

• Extension requests must be submitted in writing before the due date. 

• Review all note fields for spelling, grammar, and clarity. 

• Receipt will be acknowledged within two weeks. If no confirmation is received, 
contact HNC2030@dhhs.nc.gov. 

 

Consultation, Training, and Technical Assistance 

Consultation, training, and technical assistance are available year-round upon request. 
Contact the HNC 2030 Resource Center at HNC2030@dhhs.nc.gov to schedule. 



Available Training Opportunities 

• RBA Training (required for Scorecard users): Offered through North Carolina AHEC. 

• CHA Institute: Held twice annually (Spring and Fall). Covers North Carolina’s 
Twelve Steps of the Community Health Assessment. 

• Scorecard School for CHIPs: Offered during summer months prior to September 
CHIP deadlines. 

• Scorecard School for SOTCH Reports: Offered during winter months prior to 
March SOTCH deadlines. 

Staff are encouraged to monitor emails from the HNC 2030 Resource Center for training 
announcements. 

 

Last Updated: January 22, 2026 

 



Healthy NC 2030 Scorecard & 2025 SOTCH

Pamlico County’s Healthy NC 2030 Scorecard serves as the Community Health Improvement Plan
(CHIP) for the 2024–2027 cycle. The annual State of the County Health (SOTCH) report documents
progress, emerging issues, and program outcomes, fulfilling accreditation and accountability
requirements.

2025 SOTCH Progress Snapshot
• Behavioral Health/Substance Use, Community Wellness, and Workforce Development priorities
advancing
• New Primary Care and Telehealth services launched
• Full-time Advanced Practice Provider hired (40 hrs/week)
• $250,000 NC DHHS Telehealth Infrastructure Grant awarded
• Academic partnerships contributing over $400,000 in value

Key Issues Identified
• Opioid-related deaths and overdoses remain elevated
• Transportation barriers limit access to care
• Increased service demand following Medicaid expansion
• Ongoing billing and reimbursement modernization

Bottom Line: The Scorecard, CHIP, and SOTCH function as an integrated system to guide
resource allocation, demonstrate accountability, and support accreditation, funding, and long-term
health improvements in Pamlico County.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Pamlico County Annual Audit Presentation 

Pamlico County Finance Officer is requesting time with the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners for an annual audit presentation as required under 20 NCAC 03.0502. 
Carr Riggs and Ingram will present the audited financial statements including any 
compliance reports. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum of request attached for your review. 

4



BUDGET AMENDMENTS

5

callison
Highlight

callison
Cross-Out



tboyd
Highlight







BOARD RELEASES

6





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request for Pamlico County Tax Office Board of Equalization Approval 

Pamlico County Tax Office requested the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners to 
review and approve the Tax Office Board of Equalization and Review.  

Please see the attached email from the Pamlico County Tax Administrator for 
consideration and approval. 

7





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Request for Pamlico County Emergency Services Local Relief Fund Board 
Appointments 

Pamlico County Emergency Management Director requested the Pamlico County Board 
Of Commissioners under NCGS 58-84-30 to make appointments to the Local Relief 
Fund Board.  

Please see the attached memorandum from the Pamlico County Emergency 
Management Director for your consideration and approval to the Board. 

8





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Request To Approve The General Contract For The North Carolina Opioid 
Legislative Appropriation 

Pamlico County Administration requested approval and acceptance of the North 
Carolina Legislative Opioid Appropriation. This funding will be used for various Pamlico 
County Programs to help with Opioid response, education, and treatment.  

Please see the attached General Contract for your review and approval. 

9























































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request for Appointment to the Library Board  

Craven-Regional Library Board requested the Pamlico County Board Of Commissioners 
to approve appointment of Dennis Bickel.  

Please see the attached supporting documents from the Pamlico County Public Library, 
Branch Manager for your consideration and approval to the Board. 

10















BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request For Appointment To The Pamlico County Agricultural Advisory Board 

Pamlico County Extension Director/Agriculture Agent Danial Simpson has advised that 
the Pamlico County Agriculture Advisory Board held their Annual meeting on January 
16, 2026, with elections of officers and nomination for a new board member. Mr. Pete 
Anderson’s application for appointment was supported by the Board to begin July 1, 
2026, replacing current board member Jim Holton representing Township 1. The 
Pamlico County Agricultural Advisory Board is requesting the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners Appoint Mr. Pete Anderson to represent Township 1 effect July 1, 2026. 

Please see a copy of Mr. Anderson’s application and supporting documentation 
attached for your review and consideration. 

11







Applicant Narrative written by Daniel Simpson, NC Cooperative Extension Pamlico County 

 

Pete Anderson is a native resident of Pamlico County, currently employed with the North 
Carolina Department of Agriculture, and is the owner/operator of the beef cattle operation 
Anderson Family Farms. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Agricultural Business Management and 
has a strong background in livestock production, having served as Agriculture Extension Agent 
in Pamlico County and having worked on his family’s farm as a youth. 

Mr. Anderson is an elected member of the Pamlico County Soil & Water District board and 
active member of the Pamlico Farm Bureau Board. His occupation, education, and background 
make him a strong candidate to serve the farming interest of Pamlico County and his district. 



Agricultural Advisory Board Meeting 
January 16, 2026 

 
Minutes 

 
Board Members Present: Al Spruill (Chair), Jim Holton, Derek Potter (Vice Chair) 
 
Staff/Others Present: Daniel Simpson (Cooperative Extension), Pete Anderson (NCDA & 
Prospective Board Member) 
 

• Meeting called to order at 8:30 AM 
• Old Business 

o None 
• New Business 

o Officers and Board Members: 
 Daniel Simpson shared current membership rotation, term limits, and 

Officers.  
 Annual Election of Officers was held with Al Spruill (Chair), Derek 

Potter (Vice Chair), and Erin Richey (NCSU Secretary/Treasurer) 
retaining their current positions. 

 Daniel Simpson explained that Jim Holton (Township 1) current board 
tenure would expire on June 30, 2026 and that he had met the term 
limit service period (Only 3 consecutive terms). Jim must come remain 
off the board for at least one year before he can be reappointed. 
Prospective board member Pete Anderson was nominated to fill this 
vacancy through unanimous consistent. (Daniel Simpson will submit 
Peter Anderson’s board member application to County Commissioner, 
with his term beginning July 1, 2026) 

o VAD Ordinance Amendments 
 Daniel Simpson presented suggested VAD ordinance changes 

recommend by NCSU Extension Specialist Andrew Branan based 
upon 2021 legislative changes to VAD law. 

 Board approved sending these recommended changes to County 
Manager for review by County council and eventual adoption by 
County Commissioner. (Daniel Simpson will initiate this process) 

 Daniel Simpson presented the current VAD property application to 
board members and noted that the current fee application needs to be 
adjusted to reflect current pricing. VAD fee was originally included to 
purchase signage for new VAD applicants. (Daniel Simpson will 
investigate current pricing and make recommendations to the County 
Manager for adoption) 

o Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 AM 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request To Establish A Fee Schedule For Environmental Health 

Pamlico County Environmental Health Director and Health Director are requesting the 
Pamlico County Board of Commissioners review and consider a proposed fee schedule 
for Environmental Health Services. Currently Pamlico County does not collect fees for 
these services. 

It is requested by County Administration that if the Board of Commissioners establishes 
a fee schedule that the new fee schedule not be effective until July 1, 2026. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum with supporting information attached for your 
review and consideration. 

12



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 
 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

 
 
 
 
 

 
COUNTY OF PAMLICO 

 

POST OFFICE BOX 776 
BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 

(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195 
FAX (252) 745-5514       

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

TRACY BOYD 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

 
 

 

February 2, 2026 

To: Mark Brewington, County Manager 
From: Melanie Dixon, Health Director 
 
RE: Additional Fees for Environmental Health 
 
The Health Department has reviewed the fee schedule for Environmental Health, and after consulting 
with the Environmental Health Coordinator, the Food & Lodging Program Specialist, and other Counties, 
it has been determined that our EH department is not up to date on fee collection.  Please see the table 
below for more details: 
 

Application Current PCHD/EH 
Fees 

Avg. Other Counties’ 
Fees 

Proposed PCHD/EH 
Fees 

Mobile Food Unit Plan 
Review 

$0 $75 $75 

Food Service 
Remodel/Transitional 

Plan Review 

$0 $137.50 $125 

Childcare Plan Review $0 $200 $200 
Lodging Plan Review $0 $400 $400 

Lodging 
Remodel/Transitional 

Plan Review 

$0 $200 $200 

 
Plan reviews take quite some time to complete.  The REHS must ensure that all NC rules for the 
particular review are being met and must meet/consult with owners or other consultants numerous times.   
Multiple site visits occur along with multiple phone calls and hours of paperwork must be completed.  
This complete process, without interruption of other job duties, can take multiple days to complete, even 
months, and years on some occasions. 

The Health Department would like the Board of Commissioners to consider and approve adding these 
fees to the Environmental Health Fee Schedule. 

Thank you, 

Melanie R. Dixon, MS, REHS 
Health Director 
 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Request For Environmental Health “Power Outage of Regulated Establishments 
Guidance Document” 

Pamlico County Health Director has submitted to the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners a request for consideration an Environmental Health “Power Outage 
Establishment Guidance Document” This document is currently under review by the 
County Attorney. 

Pamlico County Administration requests the Board of Commissioner table the request 
until final approval is received by the County Attorney. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum and supporting documentation for your review. 

13









BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE: Request To Renew Lease Agreement With United States Department Of 
Agriculture 

Pamlico County Administration requests the renewal/extension of the lease agreement 
for space located at 13724 Highway 55, Alliance, NC 28509 (Brinson Building) with the 
United State Department of Agriculture. The lease will be extended until January 31, 
2029. The Shell Rent and Operating Cost establishing the annual rent is $34,821.00. 
The County Attorney has reviewed the lease and approved same. This action was 
submitted to Public Notice for a period of 30 days. 

Please see a copy of the Lease Extension for your review and approval. 

14





















BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Review Of Proposed China Grove Subdivision, China Grove Road 

Pamlico County Inspections Office requests the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners review for consideration the proposed China Grove Subdivision located 
on China Grove Road in Pamlico County. The Pamlico County Planning Board met on 
January 27, 2026, and voted to approve the preliminary and final approval for the China 
Grove Subdivision. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum of request and subdivision plans for your review 
and consideration.  

15





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Pamlico County Commissioners Annual Settlement Report 

Pamlico County Tax Administrator has submitted to the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners the 2025 County Commissioners Annual Settlement Report. This report 
is due to the governing body each February as required by NCGS 105-369(a) in part 
“Report of unpaid taxes that are liens on real property”. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum and report for your review. 

16







BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request For Swimming Pool Program Policy Review and Revision 

Pamlico County Health Director has submitted to the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners a request for review and revision of the Pamlico County Swimming Pool 
Program Policy. This document is currently under review by the County Attorney. 

Pamlico County Administration requests the Board of Commissioner table the request 
until final approval is received by the County Attorney. 

Please see a copy of the memorandum and supporting documentation for your review. 

17



 

 

 
Title:  

SWIMMING POOL PROGRAM 

 

 

Approved By: 

 

_________________________________ 

Health Director  

 

_________________________________ 

Program Coordinator 

 

 

Title:   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

 

(Swimming Pool Program) 

PURPOSE:  

To ensure that the public receives the highest quality of service from the Health Department in its 

implementation of the public swimming pool program as mandated by the state of North Carolina.   To enforce 

the state laws and rules addressing sanitation and safety of public swimming pools located within Pamlico 

County that the public health department is mandated to inspect. 

POLICY:  

The Environmental Health Division and the responsible individuals will strive to ensure facility compliance with 

all rules and regulations, which results in a safer swimming environment for the public.  

PRODCEDURE: 

 

1. Pool applications for the upcoming pool season will be mailed to existing public pools at the beginning 
of the year.  Pools shall return the completed application along with all the correct, requested pool data.  
Once this paperwork is received by The Health Department and inspected for accuracy and 
completeness, the pool can be scheduled for an inspection to permit the pool for the season.  Pools 
must submit this paperwork a minimum of 30 days prior to their requested date to be opened.  

2. Environmental Health Specialists delegated authority by the state of North Carolina to carry out the 
provisions of the relevant rule inspect and conduct all regulatory actions relevant to all public swimming 
pools. Pools are approved for state permits to operate when found to be in compliance with all 
requirements, per state rules and guidelines. Plans for new and remodeled pools are reviewed for 
compliance with the applicable rule(s). Inspections are conducted at a frequency that adheres to the 



[Type here] 
 

“Pamlico County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.” 

 

mandated inspection interval for the type establishment, as found in applicable statutes and rules. The 
authorized agents respond to public complaints and requests for services as necessary.  

 
3. Files are maintained in accordance with current North Carolina Records Retention and Disposition 

Schedule for County and District Health Departments.  
  

4. Environmental Health Division staff maintains skills and knowledge by attending educational 
conferences, SOP courses and state and district educational meetings. Staff is equipped with materials 
and equipment necessary to conduct inspections and investigations.   

 
5. Environmental Health Division staff gives priority to educating operators and employees of the regulated 

facilities to assure that they are operated in a safe and sanitary manner at all times.  
 
 

FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROGRAM 
 

Application and Plan Review Fee-New Construction  $225.00 
Seasonal Swimming Pool Permit Fee    $175.00 
Additional Visits      $ 100.00 

       Year-Round Pool Permit Fee             $275.00 
 

All fees are to be collected in advance, before any permit is issued. 
 
SWIMMING POOL PROGRAM--Applicable Laws and Rules 
 
The following policies are based on the legal authority granted to the local Health Authority under G.S. 130A -280 
thru 130A-282 to inspect and regulate Public Swimming Pools. 
 
Section 15A NCAC 18A .2500 (Rules Governing Public Swimming Pools) serve as a basis for all activities related to 
the regulation of pools within Pamlico County. 
 
State-issued guidelines and division protocols are used in the application of the rules and statutes.   
 

Reference Plans and Policies 
 

• Pamlico County Health Department Environmental Health Policy Manual 
 
 
 

 

 

Written: 5/09 

Revised: 5/14, 6/18, 12/20, 5/24 

Reviewed: 12/20, 7/22, 5/23, 5/24, 5/25 

      

 

      

 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Requested Appeal of Situs Of A 2014 Lagoon 40 Foot Catamaran Sailboat  

Pamlico County Tax Administration requested the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners review the appeal of the 2014 Lagoon 40 Foot Catamaran Sailboat. 

The Pamlico County Tax Office recommends that the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners uphold the Discovery/Situs of the above-mentioned vessel.  

Please see a copy of all supporting documentation for your review and consideration. 

18





















BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Request Approval Of Animal Services Ordinance 

Pamlico County Administration requested the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
consider for approval the attached Pamlico County Animal Services Ordinance. 

Please see a copy of the Pamlico County Animal Services Ordinance for your review 
and consideration. 

19









































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
KENNY HEATH -TOWNSHIP #5 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. - TOWNSHIP #3 

DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 
KARI FORREST – AT LARGE 
THOMAS MILLS - TOWNSHIP #1 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
MARK BREWINGTON 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

February 16, 2026 

TO:   Chairman Heath and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

FROM:   Mark Brewington, County Manager  

RE:  Pamlico Administration Request Closed Session To Discuss Personnel Matter 

The Pamlico County Administration requests a Closed Session with the Pamlico County 
Board of Commissioners to discuss a personnel matter.  

20


	2-16-2026 Agenda 
	1-20-2026 Regular Session Minutes 
	2-9-2026 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
	1. Proclamation for Lisa Bennett
	2. Pamlico County Schools Update
	3. Healthy NC 2030 Scorecard & SOTCH Presentation - Melanie Dixon 
	4. Annual Audit Presentation 
	5. Budget Amendments 
	6. Board Releases 
	7. BOER Reappointment 
	8. LRFB Appointment 
	9. Contract for the NC Opioid Legislative Appropriation 
	10. Appointment to Library Board 
	11. Appointment to the PC Agricultural Advisory Board 
	12. Environmental Health Additional Fee Schedule 
	13. Environmental Health "Power Outage of Regulated Establishments Guidance Document"
	14. USDA Lease Agreement Renewal/Extension
	15. China Grove Subdivision, China Grove Road Plat 
	16. 2025 County Commissioners Annual Settlement Report 
	17. Updated Swimming Pool Policy 
	18. Appeal of Situs of a 2014 Lagoon 40ft Catamaran Sailboat 
	19. Animal Services Ordinance 
	20. Closed Session: Personnel 



